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CITY OF TORRANCE 
3031 Torrance Blvd. 
Torrance, CA  90503 

 
RFP NO. B2020-26 

 

RFP for Design Build Fuel System at Torrance Municipal Airport 

 

REVISED ADDENDUM # 2- Issued 10/15/20 
 

THE FOLLOWING CHANGES ARE HEREBY INCORPORATED INTO AND MADE A MANDATORY PART OF  
SUBJECT RFP:   
 
CLARIFY:  The Proposal Due Date remains on Monday, November 16, 2020 by 3:00 PM in the Office of the 
City Clerk, 3031 Torrance Blvd., Torrance, CA  90503.  NO FAXED PROPOSALS EXCEPTED 
 

CLARIFY:  It has been determined that the existing generator can handle the load of the EOC and no new 

generator will be needed. Disregard PHASE XIV NEW GENERATOR FUEL SYSTEM PIPING in the RFP page 
20-21.  Also disregard the 14th bullet point on page 15 under Scope of Work Summary. 
 
 

Below are questions raised during the RFP preparation period with answers in bold: 
 

1. Is the QC Materials Testing and Special Inspection part of the scope? Will the D/B team require 
a geotechnical/materials testing consultant, or will you have a separate contract for that work? 

 
All testing and inspections will be the responsibility of awarded contractor under one contract. 
Unless specified by code that testing or inspections must be performed by a third party. 
 
 

2. Can we please receive a copy of the Sign-In Sheet for the Job Walk?  
 

The Sign-In Sheet has been emailed to all emails listed, on 9/16/20. Please notify Nina 
Schroeder at (310) 781-7151 if you did not receive it. 
 
 

3. Does the City expect or desire to have a conceptual drawing of the proposed facility included as 
part of the Proposal submitted? 

 
The City desires to have a conceptual drawing of the proposed facility included in the 
proposal. 
 
 

4. Do you have a copy of the existing Site Plan or As-Built of the existing facility for our use? 
 
Please visit the website for plans. 
https://www.torranceca.gov/government/city-departments/general-services/construction-
maintenance-bids-proposals/rfp-b2020-26-for-design-build-fuel-system-at-torrance-municipal-
airport 

      ADDENDUM # 2 



2 
 

5. It appears, per page 16 of the RFP, that while this is a design/build project, the City is 
specifying the use of only the Modern Welding Fuel Tank system. Since this is a design/build 
contract and the Contractor must certify and warranty the system installed, can the Contractor 
propose an alternate - equal to/ better than - Fuel Storage and Dispensing System from another 
California approved and certified Above Ground Tank Manufacturer as part of the design 
package? 

 
The City will accept any alternative must meet UL2085 requirements and be approved by the 
City Fire Department for this application. 
 

6. Does the City expect the contractor to remove and dispose of the three Trees just outside the 
wall as part of this Scope of Work? 

 
If trees would need to be removed, City approval is required.  Once approval is received trees 
are to be removed and disposed by the contractor. 
 
 

7. Does the City expect the two light standards and lights located just outside the wall to be 
removed and re-located or replaced with a new style/type of LED lighting system? 

 
Light poles to be relocated with pull boxes installed where necessary.  
 
 

8. How large and what type of USTs are currently installed?  (I.E. Steel, Fiberglass, double 
walled, etc.?) 

 
Both Fiberglass, double-walled 10,000 gal Diesel and 10,000 gal Gasoline. 
 
 

9. Is there a concrete base slab below the tanks? 
 
Unknown, no plans to verify.  
 

10. Who has ownership of and responsibility for ALL of the currently installed equipment and piping 
that needs to be removed?  

 
City of Torrance / Airport. 
 
 

11. What does the City want done with the Heath Tank (above ground vapor recovery tank)?   Does 
it need to be incorporated into the new system and re-used? 

 
It was determined that the City meets 100% ORVR compatibility which will allow the City to be 
exempt from phase 1 vapor recovery requirements on this system. 
 

12. Does the City expect the Contractor to be responsible for facility painting and signage and 
traffic striping? 

 
The contractor is expected to include the facility painting, signage and traffic striping. 
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13. Is there an additional staging area available in addition to the current yard, if needed? 
 
Additional staging area is remote, and access will be limited due to airport operations. 
 
 

14. The RFP mentions an “attached drawing” (Phase IV - Wall Construction, pg. 16).  None 
provided – Could the City please post the drawing on the website or as an addendum?  

 
Please visit the website for drawing. 
https://www.torranceca.gov/government/city-departments/general-services/construction-
maintenance-bids-proposals/rfp-b2020-26-for-design-build-fuel-system-at-torrance-municipal-
airport 
 
 

15. Based upon the most recent Hirt Phase II Executive Order (VR-501-D) the facility will have to 
install a Hirt burner or apply for the ORVR Exemption. Depending upon what the City does, it 
will determine the hanging hardware and configuration. Will the City ask for an ORVR 
Exemption? Check with Fire Prevention? 

 
The City team is confirming that at this point all the vehicles that will be fueling at the airport 
are 100% ORVR compliant. 
 
 

16. Does the City have room for placing the Hirt burner 20” from the Unleaded vent? Will the City 
require an enclosure for the burner?  

 
N/A see item #15 for 100% ORVR compatibility. 
 
 

17. Will the dispenser have a canopy?  
 
There will be no Canopy unless required by regulation. 
 
 

18. I am assuming that the airport has an SPCC Plan--Who will be responsible for updating the 
plan? If they have over 10,000 gallons on the facility, it will require an engineer’s signature for 
the update. 

 
The Airport does not have an SPCC Plan, this plan must be provided by the awarded 
contractor, designed and signed by an engineer.  Per page 21 of the project manual. 

 
 

19. Per job walk there was conversation of no work taking place in the grass planter area and at 
south east corner of project.  Will any bulletins be issued stating this? Please advise. 

 
If no work is to take place in this area, area to be removed from scope of work.  
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20. Are there any as built drawings of the construction area?  Such as wall footings, existing 
concrete thickness, size of existing tanks, depths of existing, how much fuel is in existing tanks? 
Please advise.  

 
Please see attached plans for the remodeled portion of the wall.  City does not have original 
plans of the wall.   
 
 

21. Will the existing propane tank be removed or relocated? Please advise. 
 
There is no propane tank in the area. 
 
 

22. Is there any information on the existing control system and card reader? Such as an existing 
technical representative or company.  Please advise. 

 
The attached information on pages 10-17 of this addendum should answer most of the 
questions. The contact information for our vendor is also included. 
 
 

23. During construction & demo of existing blockwall what type of fence and size will be 
acceptable? Such as chain link, orange snow flake or K rails. Please advise. 

 
Minimum 8 ft. chain link fencing with privacy screen. Area must be secured from public 
entrance. 
 
 

24. Can an extension of the RFP submittal date be granted? 
 
The proposal due date has been extended to Monday, November 16, 2020 by 3:00 p.m. in the 
Office of the City Clerk, 3031 Torrance Blvd., Torrance, CA  90503. 
 
 

25. Any information on the underground tank, ie: size, depth, age…?  
 
10,000 gallon Diesel Tank 
10,000 gallon Gasoline Tank 
Installed on August 20, 1991. 
 
 

26. Is an “abandonment in place” an option for the underground tank? 
 
“Abandonment in place” is Not an option, tanks must be removed. 
 
 

27. Is there a preferred traffic plan for the equipment that will be using the fuel island? 
 
Traffic must enter the Maintenance gate.   Vehicle types to fuel include: Motorcycles, sedans, 
SUVs, Fire Engines / Ladder Trucks, Street maintenance trucks. 
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28. It was mentioned of the city wanting to keep the existing card reader, but also mentioned a 
replacement..? 

 
The existing card reader electronics will be updated at some point during or at the end of the 
project. 
 
 

29. What fuel management software is currently being used? 
 
AssetWorks, Fuel Focus FMS System. Documents included in this addendum. 
 
 

30. What are the lighting needs for the new equipment? 
 
Relocate and reutilize the existing light pole. 
 
 

31. On page 12 of the RFP under “typical timeframe outline,” it calls for a schedule of 120 days for 
“Planning and Design”. What is expected to be included for this time frame?  

 
Planning and Design to include site visits, analysis, evaluation, drawings to meet applicable 
local, state, federal regulations, fire codes, plumbing and electrical codes and other applicable 
codes, as well as obtaining permits through City of Torrance as applicable. 
 
 

32. Is it the intent of the specifications for the new facility to include a concrete housekeeping pad 
or walkway from the parking lot to the new swing door to be installed and to eliminate the 
current landscape area between the existing wall and the curb? 

 
Keep landscape but add walkway. 
 

33. Is the 36-inch swing door to open into the containment area and when open for a person to step 
over the 6” x 6” containment wall? 

 
Door needs to be positioned to avoid trip hazards. 
 

34. Is there an existing electrical circuit that feeds the current fueling system that the new system 
can tie-into at/near the new tank location or are we expected to create a completely new 
electrical conduit line and circuit at the power panel in the maintenance garage? 

 
Yes, existing electrical circuit to be used/repositioned. 
 

35. In the phasing of the RFP, it appears that the City wants the new Fueling Facility to be 
constructed BEFORE the existing USTs are removed and that fuel will need to be transferred 
from these existing USTs to the new Fueling facility by the Contractor instead of starting off the 
new system with new fuel from the supplier.  Is that correct? 

 
No fuel transfer from USTs., Diesel tank is empty. Gasoline tank minimal amount since already 
transferred out. 
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36. Is it expected that the vehicle gate access and driveway continue to be utilized by City vehicles 
and staff during this project and that the Contractor is expected to provide access or keep the 
driveway open while working in this area or does the Contractor have full control and use of this 
area during the project? 

 
Main driveway to remain open allowing access to the Tower gate and tower parking area. 
Maintenance gate may be used by contractor during the project and closed while removing 
tanks and removal of USTs. 
 
 

37. Operationally and for ease of constructability, it is more efficient and cost effective if the UST’s 
and surface concrete be demolished and removed at the same  time as the other demolition 
activities are being conducted leaving a clean/clear footprint to install the new fueling facility 
and related concrete repair/replacement. Has this been considered or is the Contractor required 
to strictly follow the Phased sequencing provided in the RFP? 

 
Contractor can remove USTs at the beginning of the project. 
 
 

38. Will the City Fire Marshall need to inspect and sign off on the completed fueling facility? 
 
City Inspectors, Fire Prevention, and LA County Fire will need to sign-off on the completed 
fueling facility. 
 
 

39. It will be very helpful to have a copy of the “as-built” Site Plan as soon as possible, can this be 
sent out ahead of the Amendment? 

 
Please visit the website for plans. 
https://www.torranceca.gov/government/city-departments/general-services/construction-
maintenance-bids-proposals/rfp-b2020-26-for-design-build-fuel-system-at-torrance-municipal-
airport 
 
 

40. Who is responsible to empty the USTs of any residual and usable fuel?    
 
Awarded contractor is responsible.  
 
 

41. Who is responsible for moving or relocating the Generator Tank and the fuel in it? 
 
Awarded contractor is responsible.  
 

42. Can it be moved and the Generator taken out of service while the work is going on? 
 
Generator will need to stay online for duration of project. 
 

43. Can the UST removal be done as part of the Demolition phase? 
 
Yes. 
 

https://www.torranceca.gov/government/city-departments/general-services/construction-maintenance-bids-proposals/rfp-b2020-26-for-design-build-fuel-system-at-torrance-municipal-airport
https://www.torranceca.gov/government/city-departments/general-services/construction-maintenance-bids-proposals/rfp-b2020-26-for-design-build-fuel-system-at-torrance-municipal-airport
https://www.torranceca.gov/government/city-departments/general-services/construction-maintenance-bids-proposals/rfp-b2020-26-for-design-build-fuel-system-at-torrance-municipal-airport
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44. With the card reader being temporarily removed during construction are we to reinstall with the 
same wiring circuitry or are we to provide a new or use an existing junction box where it can be 
re-wired and connected to? 

 
If no existing junction box present, a new junction box will need to be provided by installing 
contractor. 
 
 

45. Does the City expect to see and review the new design at the Conceptual (35%), 65% and 
100% Design Levels before submittal to the Building Department?  If so, to whom is it submitted 
and will it require a face-to-face meeting and presentation to the City from the Contractor at 
those three design levels? 

 
The City expects to see and review the 100% plans prior to submitting the plans to plan check. 
An electronic copy of the plans is acceptable. No requirement for face-to-face meeting and 
presentation. 
 
 

46. Who at the City will review and approve the final design package prior to it being submitted to 
the Torrance Fire, Planning and Building Departments? 

 
Steve Minor, Sr. Building Inspector, Jim Fuentes Acting Facility Services Manager and Nina 
Schroeder Sr. Business Manager will review and approve the final design package prior to it 
being submitted to Torrance Fire, Planning and Building Departments. 
 
 

47. What is the expected Approval Time from the City Departments and the SCAQMD?  
 
Design to be approved by General Services prior to submitting for permits. 
 
 

48. Is the design approval time to be included in the 120 day project schedule or does the 120 days 
begin AFTER the design approvals have been obtained?  Since the Contractor has no control 
over this Agency approval time, especially the SCAQMD, the Construction schedule cannot 
really be started until the design phase and approvals are received. 

 
The 120 days includes planning, design and plan check approval. 
 
 

49. Does the city plan on keeping the existing Veeder Root equipment in use? 
 
The City plans to keep the existing Veeder Root equipment in use.   
 

50. Is the existing equipment that will no longer be in use, contractor salvageable? 
 
Contractor to remove all old components from site. 
 

51. When the UST’s were installed? 
 
The UST’s were installed on August 20, 1991. 
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52. Are the UST’s anchored? 
 
Unknown. 
 

53. Are there any “As Builds” for the UST’s? 
 
No “As Builts” available.  
 

54. Are the UST’s steel or fiberglass? 
 
The UST’s are manufactured by JOOR, they are double wall with interior wall steel. 
 
 

55. If the UST’s are carbon steel, were they ever fiber glassed lined? 
 
The UST’s are not fiber glassed lined. 
 

56. On pg.18 under “Dispenser System Piping” it calls out “Painting for corrosion protection”. Is 
there a specification or a specific product that the city requires? 

 
A good quality corrosion inhibiter approved by manufacture is preferred. 
 

57. Are there any past Geotechnical reports for the site or water table information? 
 
No, the city does not have past Geotechnical reports for the site or water table information to 
provide. 
 

58. Can we get the CAD Files for the drawings used for City Project “Bid for Installation of a 
Generator at Torrance Airport-B2013-55”? 

 
Please visit the website for plans. 
https://www.torranceca.gov/government/city-departments/general-services/construction-
maintenance-bids-proposals/rfp-b2020-26-for-design-build-fuel-system-at-torrance-municipal-
airport  
 
 

59. If the UST’s are fiberglass, are they to be crushed on site, put into a container, and disposed of 
at the landfill once they are cleaned and certified inert? 

 
UST to be removed from site as required with minimal airborne dust particulates. 
 
 

60. If steel, and once they have been cleaned and certified inert, can they be hauled to a local steel 
recycler and scrapped? 

 
Debris to be disposed of according to City recycling requirements. 
 

61. Is there a high-water table at the site? If so, will we be required to obtain water samples instead 
of soil samples? 

 
Unknown. 

https://www.torranceca.gov/government/city-departments/general-services/construction-maintenance-bids-proposals/rfp-b2020-26-for-design-build-fuel-system-at-torrance-municipal-airport
https://www.torranceca.gov/government/city-departments/general-services/construction-maintenance-bids-proposals/rfp-b2020-26-for-design-build-fuel-system-at-torrance-municipal-airport
https://www.torranceca.gov/government/city-departments/general-services/construction-maintenance-bids-proposals/rfp-b2020-26-for-design-build-fuel-system-at-torrance-municipal-airport
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62. If the UST’s are anchored, were they secured to a concrete slab or concrete dead men in the 
bottom of the tank hole? 

 
Unknown. 
 

63. If anchored can the slab or dead men remain in the bottom of the tank hole and backfilled? 
 
No contaminated material to remain on site. 
 
 

64. Can the original backfill material be re-used as backfill once the tanks are removed? 
 
May be reused as long as material is not contaminated. 
 
 

65. Can the tank hole be backfilled once the samples have been taken, or do we have to wait until 
we receive the sample analysis? 

 
The City recommends backfilling immediately for safety concerns. 
 

66. Is a 12,000 Diesel and 3,000 unleaded acceptable? (The tank top space on 2,000 Gallons is 
insufficient to include required components such as vents, manway, overfill valve In Accordance 
With (IAW) Underwriter Laboratories (UL) 

 
A 12,000 diesel and 3,000 unleaded is acceptable and is preferred by the City of Torrance.  
 

 
 
Please return this addendum with your bid proposal.  
Failure to acknowledge addenda and submit it with  
your proposal may render the proposal non-responsive  
and cause it to be rejected.  I hereby acknowledge  
receipt of this addendum. 
       
        

  ______________________________ 
         Name of Company 
 
 
                                                         ______________________________ 
          Address 
 
 
         ______________________________ 
          City         State             Zip Code 
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